CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD

MINUTES



CABINET MEETING: 21 NOVEMBER 2016

Cabinet Members Present:	Councillor Phil Bale (Chair) Councillor Sue Lent Councillor Peter Bradbury Councillor Dan De'Ath Councillor Bob Derbyshire Councillor Graham Hinchey Councillor Susan Elsmore Councillor Sarah Merry Councillor Ramesh Patel
Observers:	Councillor Dianne Rees Councillor Neil McEvoy Councillor Judith Woodman
Officers:	Paul Orders, Chief Executive Christine Salter, Section 151 Officer Marie Rosenthal, Monitoring Officer Joanne Watkins, Cabinet Office

Apologies:

49 PROPERTY INVESTMENT ESTATE UPDATE

Appendix 2 of this report is not for publication as it contains exempt information of the kind described in paragraph 14 of part 4 and paragraph 21 of part 5 of schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Cabinet considered a report detailing the new 5 year Investment Estate Strategy. Investment Estate is the Council's portfolio of non-operational property held for the primary purpose of generating income to support the Council's revenue budget. Jones Lang La Salle have been appointed as the Council's external property advisor and will be consulted on all property transactions affecting the Investment Estate.

RESOLVED: that the Investment Estate Strategy 2016 – 2021 attached as Appendix 1 to the report be approved.

50 TIDAL LAGOON CARDIFF UPDATE

Cabinet received a report providing an update on the latest position with regard to the potential proposals to construct a Tidal Lagoon between Cardiff and Newport. The report details the potential opportunities and issues of the potential scheme.

RESOLVED: that

- 1. the report be noted, and, in the event the project is progressed, to request that the Environment Scrutiny Committee establish a Scrutiny Task and Finish Group process including the gathering of independent expert advice in order to derive more detailed information and clarity on potential opportunities and issues, and to report back to Cabinet with an enhanced understanding ahead of any requests for the Council to formally engage in the planning process; and
- 2. In the event the project is progressed, to Officers be authorised to;
 - further liaise with the developers of the project in order to confirm a Planning Performance Agreement which secures the necessary resources for the Council to fulfil its required duties as the project is taken through the planning process,
 - (ii) undertake a detailed appraisal of the potential economic, social and environmental implications of the project for Cardiff, and
 - (iii) engage with the developers of the project to understand more fully the public benefit which would be offered to offset the potential risks.

51 2016-17 QUARTER 2 PERFORMANCE REPORT

The Cabinet received the Council's performance report for Quarter 2 (July to September) of the 2016-17 financial year. It was reported that 60% of Corporate Plan Commitments were Green and 62% of Performance Indicators were green

RESOLVED: that the current position regarding performance, the delivery of key commitments and priorities as at Quarter 2, and the action being taken to address areas of concern be noted.

52 BUDGET MONITORING - MONTH 6 REPORT

Cabinet considered the Budget Monitoring position for month 6. The overall position indicated a projected overspend of £537,000 an improved of £313,000 on the month 4 position. The overall position continues to reflect financial pressures and shortfalls against budget savings targets in directorate budgets. It is anticipated that management actions taking during the year will enable this to be reduced by the year end.

RESOLVED: that

- 1. the potential outturn position based on the first six months of the financial year be noted.
- 2. The requirement for all directorates currently reporting overspends as identified in this report to put in place actions to reduce their projected overspends be reinforced.

53 SCHOOL ORGANISATION PROPOSALS: THE PROVISION OF ENGLISH-MEDIUM AND WELSH-MEDIUM PRIMARY SCHOOL PLACES IN THE ADAMSDOWN AND SPLOTT WARDS

Cabinet received a report detailing the proposed modification to an agreed School Organisation Proposal relating to the provision of English-medium and Welshmedium primary school places in the Adamsdown and Splott wards. Following receipt of updated pre-school population data it has been identified that the demand for primary school places in the Adamsdown and Splott wards will fall and therefore a modification to the previous proposals are necessary.

RESOLVED: that

- 1. Officers be authorised to seek the agreement of Welsh Ministers of the proposed modification to the agreed school organisation proposal as set out at paragraph 7.
- 2. Officers be authorised to review projections and demand for English-medium primary school places in the area to inform the future progress of the proposed expansion of Moorland Primary School.
- 3. the delay to the completion date for the delivery of the new build school for Ysgol Glan Morfa as set out at paragraph 11 be noted.

54 COMMISSIONING OF REPLACEMENT BUILDING MAINTENANCE SERVICES FRAMEWORK

Cabinet considered the proposed commissioning of the replacement building maintenance framework. The annual value of the framework is £25.7 million and the proposed framework seeks to address a range of significant difficulties with the previous, very diverse, arrangements for the supply and management of building maintenance and improvement works.

RESOLVED: that

- 1. the strategy approach for the commissioning for Housing Repairs and Maintenance and Disabled Adaptions as set out in this report be approved.
- 2. Authority be delegated to the Director of Communities, Housing and Customer Service, in consultation with the portfolio member for Health, Housing and

Wellbeing and the section 151 Officer and County Solicitor, to deal with all aspects of the procurement relating to Housing Repairs and Maintenance and Disabled Adaptations, including setting the contract evaluation criteria and the award of contracts.

- 3. Authority be delegated to the Director of Communities, Housing and Customer Service to make the interim contractual arrangements necessary for the continuation of service until the new contracts are in place
- 4. It be noted that recommissioning of Non-Domestic services be taken forward as a second phase and will be the subject of a separate cabinet report.